IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

FILED
SID J. VIRILE
MAR 12 1984

CLERK SUPKEME COURT,

By Chief Deputy Gerk

PAUL EDWARD MAGILL,

Appellant,

vs.

Case No. 44997

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

APPELLANT'S BRIEF

PHILIP J. PADOVANO 1020 East Lafayette Street Suite 201 Post Office Box 873 Tallahassee, Florida 32302

PATRICK D. DOHERTY 619 Turner Street Clearwater, Floirda 33516

ATTORNEYS FOR APPELLANT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

The transcript of the proceedings held on the Motion to Vacate will be cited by the abbreviation "TrMV", and the separately bound volume containing the other portions of the record in the lower tribunal will be cited as "RMV". Citations to the original record and trial transcript will be made by the abbreviations "R" and "Tr" respectively.

To facilitate review in this case the Appellant has prepared an Appendix which includes the prior opinions of this Court and all pertinent orders of the Circuit Court. Parallel citations to the Appendix will be made througout this Brief.

The Apellant, Paul Edward Magill, will be referred to by name or as the "Defendant" and the Appellee will be referred to as the "State".

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Α.

Original Proceedings in the Trial Court

The Defendant was charged by Indictment with the crimes of first degree murder, sexual battery, and armed robbery. (R-1-2) Although he was seventeen years old and therefore a juvenile under Florida law, he was tried as an adult. A plea of Not Guilty was entered and the case was tried before a jury on March 21, 1977.

At the close of the guilt phase of the trial the jury returned a verdict finding the Defendant guilty as charged of The State produced no each of the offenses. (R-66,66a,66b) aggravating circumstances in penalty phase evidence of the began shortly after verdicts were proceedings which the announced, but at the conclusion of that portion of the trial the jury returned an advisory verdict recommending the imposition of the death penalty. (Tr-612)

Consecutive life sentences were imposed on the charges of robbery and involuntary sexual battery, and the trial judge imposed a sentence of death on the charge of murder, in accordance with the recommendation of the jury. (R-74-76) In the written findings submitted in support of the sentence of death, (R-78, Appendix A), the trial judge found the following four aggravating circumstances:

- (1) that three felonies, namely, Murder in the First Degree, Involuntary Sexual battery and used or threatened to use in the process thereof a deadly weapon, and Robbery and in the course thereof carried a firearm, were committed by the Defendant PAUL EDWARD MAGILL.
- (2) The capital felony of Murder was committed while the Defendant was engaged in the commission of, or flight after committing, the crime of Robbery and Rape.
- (3) The said capital felony was especially heinous, atrocious and cruel, as there existed no logical or compelling reason for the Defendant to kill said robbery and rape victim and same was the heinous act of a person evincing a depraved criminal mind.

(4) The said capital felony was committed in connection with the crime of robbery which was perpetrated for pecuniary gain.

The Trial Judge further stated in the written findings that there were "no mitigating circumstances which outweigh the ... aggravating circumstances." (R-78-79, Appendix A)

A timely direct appeal was filed in this Court to challenge both the conviction and sentence.

В.

The Direct Appeal

The Defendant's direct appeal to this Court resulted in an affirmance of the conviction, but the Court remanded the case for a new sentencing hearing on the ground that the Trial Judge erred generally in his failure to "list the mitigating circumstances" which may or may not have been considered. Magill v. State, 386 So.2d 1188 (Fla. 1980) cert. den. 450 U.S. 927, 67 L.Ed.2d 359, 101 S.Ct. 1384 (1981) (Appendix B).

c.

The Sentencing After Remand

On January 26, 1981, following the new sentencing hearing, the Trial Judge entered a new Judgment supported by written Findings of Fact. (Appendix C) He concluded that the same four

aggravating circumstances were applicable, and found the existence of the following three mitigating circumstances:

- (1) that the Defendant Magill was seventeen years of age at the time of the offense,
- (2) that the Defendant had no significant prior criminal record and,
- (3) that the Defendant's father had passed away on December 28, 1975.

The ultimate conclusion of the Court was that there were "insufficient mitigating circumstances to outweigh the aggravating circumstances." Accordingly, the Trial Judge resentenced the Defendant to death. (Appendix C).

D.

The Appeal After Remand

The second appeal to the this Court involved only the validity of the Defendant's sentence. On March 10, 1983, the Court entered its four-to-one opinion affirming the imposition of the sentence of death. Magill v. State, 428 So.2d 649, (Fla. 1983). cert. den., U.S. (U.S. No. 82-6733, October 3, 1983). (Appendix D).

Ε.

The Post Conviction Proceedings

Governor Graham denied the Defendant's Petition for Executive Clemency and signed a death warrant on February 21, 1984, directing the execution of the sentence at some time

between March 16, 1984 and March 23, 1984. (Appendix E). Subsequently, the Superintendent of the Florida State Prison scheduled the execution for Tuesday, March 20, 1984, at 7:00 a.m.

Shortly after the Warrant was signed the Defendant filed a Motion to Vacate the Judgment and Sentence of Death and a Motion for Stay of Execution. (RMV) The Motions were scheduled to be heard in the Circuit Court for Marion County Florida on March 8, 1984 upon ten days written notice to the State. As the hearing commenced, the State filed a written Response to the Motion to Vacate and a Motion to Strike some of the grounds set forth in support of the Motion. (RMV).

The Defendant asserted a number of fundamental errors in his collateral challenge to the conviction and sentence including a claim that he was denied the effective assitance of counsel at trial and sentencing. The specific acts or omissions upon which the ineffectiveness claim was based were detailed in the factual allegations of the Motion to Vacate. (RMV).

The Trial Judge considered the evidence presented on the Defendant's behalf and entered an Order denying the Motion to Vacate (Appendix F) as well as the Motion for Stay of Execution. (Appendix G).

This Appeal was timely filed on March 8, 1984.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

A number of collateral legal challenges were raised in the Motion to Vacate, but the evidence presented to the Court in support of the Motion related primarily to the Defendant's claim of ineffective assistance of counsel at trial and at sentencing.

The Defendant was represented at trial by Mr. Robert Pierce who was then the Public Defender for the Fifth Judicial Circuit. Attorney Pierce showed up on the morning of trial and announced to Mr. Hale Stancil, the assistant public defender assigned to the case, that he was going to take over the presentation of the case. (TrMV-121).

Hale Stancil, now a county judge in Marion County, candidly stated that in his opinion Mr. Pierce was unprepared to try the case. (TrMV-177). Pierce had not handled any of the pretrial proceedings nor had he ever met the Defendant Magill. Although he swore that his primary objective was to save the Defendant's life, (TrMV-128), he walked out after the verdict of guilt and left Stancil to try the penalty phase. (TrMV-129).

During the hearing on the Motion to Vacate, Attorney Pierce testified that he did not recall trying the case. (TrMV-65). When his memory was refreshed by the trial transcript he admitted he had taken part in the case, but he did not recall the Defendant and could not identify him in court or by looking at a photgraph taken at the time of the offense. (TrMV-66,67).

The Defendant's present counsel asked Mr. Pierce to read his opening statement from the trial transcript and to state what defense he had raised on the Defendant's behalf. He read that portion of the transcript and said that the defense was either insanity or a plea for second degree murder. (TrMV-69,70). He could not reach a more specific conclusion on the basis of the one-page opening statement because no defense was mentioned in it and because it was clear that he told the jury that guilt was not an issue in the case. (TrMV-71).

Mr. Pierce could not recall filing or arguing any motions on Paul Magill's behalf. (TrMV-84). He could not recall taking any depositions or reading any police reports. (TrMV-72). When asked to affirm or deny the fact that he had spoken to Paul Magill he could do neither. (TrMV-72). He could not explain why he called Paul to the stand on the motion to suppress his confession or why elicited testimnoy that he had confessed freelv he and voluntarily. (TrMV-107). Finally, he could not give any strategic or tactical reason why he called Paul to the stand in the guilt phase of the trial to confess that he was guilty of first degree murder (TrMV-75-81), or why he argued in summation, in the face of his own client's testimony, that the evidence only supported second degree murder.

Mr. Stancil was likewise unable to advance any strategic or tactical reasons for any of the acts and ommissions of Mr. Pierce during the guilt phase of the trial. He could offer no reason why Mr. Pierce took over the case on the day of trial, nor was he

aware of any pretrial preparation on Mr. Pierce's part other than the fact that they had had conversations about the case from time to time. (TrMV-121-124).

The only reason given for placing Paul Magill on the stand during the Motin to Supress was that the attorneys thought they needed to "protect the record." (TrMV-137,141,142). Mr. Stancil conceded that Paul Magill was the only witness called by the defense on the Motion and that his testimony that the confession was freely and voluntarily given was directly contrary to the essential allegations of the motion. (TrMV-136-145).

Mr. Stancil categorically stated that he did not think that Mr. Pierce was prepared to try the case. (TrMV-177). He stated that Pierce did not allow him to make any objections and that he was not consulted on any of the technical decisions made by Mr. Pierce. (TrMV-133). He did not know why Mr. Pierce stipulated to the introduction of all of all of the items of tangible evidence. (TrMV-151). Mr. Stancil further stated that Mr. Pierce left the courtroom after the guilt phase of the trial saying only that he was going. (TrMV-129).

Paul Magill testified that he met Mr. Pierce on the day of the trial and that Pierce did not discuss his testimony or prepare him for the prosecutor's cross examination. (TrMV-222). Magill stated, without contradiction, that he was not consulted by anyone about any of the tactical decisions made during the trial. (TrMV-223).

Dr. George Barnard, a psychiatrist appointed to determine sanity and competency, testified that he was not questioned by either defense lawyer as to the existence of any mitigating circumstances relating to Paul Magill's emotional health. (TrMV-16). He was given a package of information outlining Paul's life from the age of sixteen but he was not provided with any other history. (TrMV-19). Nor was he told whether Paul was on any psychotropic medication at the time of the examination. (TrMV-22).

Dr. Barnard did not recall any pretrial contact with Paul Magill's attorneys (TrMV-24), and did not recall whether he spoke with either of them prior to his testimony at the penalty phase. (TrMV-27). He was not prepared to give any opinion at the penalty phase other than his opinion that the Defendant was sane at the time of the offense and that he was competent to stand trial. (TrMV-16,27). In response to questioning at the hearing on the Motion to Vacate, Dr. Barnard said that the Defendant had exhibited "impulsive" behavior in the past. (TrMV-40-42).

Dr. Frank Carrera gave testimony similar to that of Dr. Barnard. He stated that he could not testify as to whether there were any psychologically-based mitigating circumstances in this case because no one ever asked him to look for any. (TrMV-15). He confined his examination to the two issues of sanity at the time of the offense and the competence to stand trial. (TrMV-10,11). He could recall no contact with either Mr. Stancil or Mr. Pierce. (TrMV-8).

The final medical witness called at the hearing was Dr. Martinez-Montford, a psychologist who had also evaluated Paul Magill. He testified that he had seen Paul Magill at age thirteen when he was referred by his parents after having exposed himself in public. (TrMV-46). Dr. Montford's opinion was that at that time Paul had very little control over his aggressive impulses. (TrMV-48), and that his only control mechanism was that of isolating himself in a schizoid pattern from other persons and living a solitary life. (TrMV-48).

Dr. Montford further testified that he was certain that Paul would become worse with age since the aggressive and sexual impulses would become stronger as adolescence progressed. (TrMV-50). It was his judgment that at age thirteen two mitigating factors were emerging: one, that Paul Magill then had an inability to conform his conduct to the requirements of law and two, that Paul Magill was suffering from an emotional illness. (TrMV-51).

Margaret Good, the assistant public defender who handled the direct appeal to this Court. She recited a conversation with Mr. Stancil in which he admitted that he was counting on the insanity defense and when he learned it could not be supported he just did not know what he was going to do. (TrMV-210). He told Ms. Good that he filed the Motion for Continuance in good faith (the denial of the motion was asserted as error by Ms. Good) because he was unprepared for trial. (TrMV-210).

Ms. Good further testified that she had had a conversation with Dr. Barnard in which the opinions of Dr. Martinez were discussed and that two mitigating factors seemed to be available. (TrMV-198). Neither one of these mitigating factors was offered by the defense to the members of the jury for their consideration.

Paul's mother, Mary Lou Magill, testified that she spoke with Mr. Stancil only twice during his entire preparation of the case and that both times she initiated the contact. (TrMV-227). She volunteered to Mr. Stancil the name of Dr. Martinez-Montfort, and gave him a written summary of Paul's life. (TrMV-227).

She was not consulted on any strategic decisions, including the decision to place her son on the witness stand and to subject him to cross examination. (TrMV-229,230). She had never heard of Mr. Pierce and had never seen him until the day of trial when he began picking the jury in Paul's case. In fact, she believed he worked for the prosecution. (TrMV-228).

The materials prepared by Dr. Martinez-Montford were never utilized by Mr. Stancil in the mitigation phase of the case, despite the fact that Mrs. Magill was present and witnessed a tape recording of the conversation between Stancil and Montfort, which took place over the phone. (TrMV-226). She verified the number of times that Paul Magill had seen Mr. Stancil and that he

had never seen Mr. Pierce. To her knowledge the attorneys did not discuss any tactical or strategic decisions with her son. (TrMV-225,226).

Finally, the Defense called Robert Link, a Jacksonville attorney who was qualified as an expert and accepted by the Court as an expert in the field of criminal law in the defense of capital cases. He testified that in his opinion the representation of the Defendant at trial fell measurably below that of competent counsel, (TrMV-244), and that the errors and ommissions were substantial enough that they affected the outcome of the case. (TrMV-281).

Mr. Link said that voir dire was ineffective to the extent that counsel allowed the prosecutor to create the impression that it would be wrong to consider the Defendant's youthfulness in mitigation. (TrMV-246). The opening statement failed to contest guilt, and failed to map out any defense for the jury. (TrMV-254). Mr. Pierce failed to cross examine both the chief investigating officer, (TrMV-255), and the medical examiner, (TrMV-256-260), and apparently failed to read the autopsy report.

Attorney Link stated that the mishandling of the guilt phase by Mr. Robert Pierce was so damaging to the penalty phase that Mr. Stancil could not prevent a recommendation of death in the penalty phase. (TrMV-245). Mr. Link testified that in addition to Mr. Pierce's failure to cross-examine crucial witnesses, his decision to put his client on the witness stand was in itself ineffectiveness of counsel (TrMV-261-265) because the record

shows (1), that he knew his client would confess to First Degree Murder and destroy the Second Degree Murder plea or (2), that Mr. Pierce did not know what his client would testify to. In either event he was ineffective in his assitance as counsel. (TrMV-267). Mr. Link considered it obvious that a lawyer in a First Degree Murder case should be conversant with his client's trial testimony prior to putting him on the stand. He also thought it was obvious that there was no preparation whatsoever for the trial testimony of Paul Magill. (TrMV-266).

Mr. Link pointed out that there was virtually no closing argument by Mr. Pierce addressing any of the factual matters in the trial, especially the factual matters brought out through the testimony of his own client.(TrMV-270-273). Paul Magill was allowed to state on cross examination that the offense was premediated but Mr. Pierce argued to the jury that it was not premediated, apparently asking the jury to disbelieve his own client. (TrMV-272).

Mr. Link also found it remarkable that Pierce could not identify Mr. Magill or recall any of the facts of the case. (TrMV-274). The conclusion he reached after reviewing the transcript and listening to all of the testimony presented during the Motion to Vacate was that Mr. Pierce mishandled the case to such a degree that he destroyed any chance Paul Magill had of obtaining a life sentence. (TrMV-244,245) He was of the opinion that Pierce substantially altered the course of the case by virtue of his ineffective representation. (TrMV-281).

The State did not present any testimony or other evidence during the hearing on the motion.

ARGUMENT

POINT ONE

THE DEFENDANT WAS DEPRIVED OF EFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL AT TRIAL AND SENTENCING IN VIOLATION OF HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE SIXTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS

It is well established that the Sixth Amendment guarantees not only the right to an attorney but the right to "reasonably effective assistance" of counsel. <u>Powell v. Alabama</u>, 287 U.S 45, 77 L Ed 158, 53 S.Ct. 55 (1932) <u>Cuyler v. Sullivan</u>, 446 U.S. 335, 100 S.Ct. 1708, 70 L.Ed.2d 650 (1980). The federal and state courts are in disagreement, however, as to an appropriate test for the determination of the effectiveness of counsel.

The Supreme Court has granted certiorari to review the decision of the Fifth Circuit in <u>Washington v. Strickland</u>, 693 F.2d 1243 (5th Cir. Unit B 1982) (en banc) <u>cert. granted</u>, 51 U.S.L.W. 3685 (U.S. June 7, 1983), which provides a more flexible standard for determining ineffective assistance of counsel claims in death penalty cases than that which was established by this Court in <u>Knight v. State</u>, 394 So.2d 997 (Fla. 1981).

In determining whether a defendant has been provided with reasonably effective assistance of counsel under <u>Knight</u>, the courts must adhere to the following four-step approach: (1) the act or omission upon which the claim is based must be detailed in

the appropriate pleading, (2) the defendant has the burden to show that the specific omission or overt act was a substantial serious deficiency measurably below that of competent counsel, (3) the defendant has the burden to show that the act or circumstances omission when considered under the was substantial enough to demonstrate individual case, prejudice to the defendant to the extent that there is a likelihood that the deficient conduct affected the outcome of the court proceeding, and (4) in the event that the defendant does show a substantial deficiency and presents a prima facie showing of prejudice, the state still has an opportunity to rebut these assertions by showing beyond a reasonable doubt that there was no prejudice in fact. The Washington standard merely requires a defendant to show that the ineffectiveness "resulted in actual and substantial disadvantage to the course of his defense" but not necessarily that the "disadvantage determined the outcome of the entire case.". Washington v. Strickland, supra, King v. Strickland, F. 2d (11th Cir. Case No. 82-5306 September 2, 1983).

The State argued that the Trial Judge was not bound by Washington because the precedents of intermediate federal appellate courts are not binding on the states court. While that much is obviously true, the argument is one which is ill advised. It is not just a question of precedent for if this claim is denied the case will ultimately be presented to the Eleventh Circuit which is bound by decisions of Unit B of the

former Fifth Circuit. Additionally it should be clear that the State's Petition for Writ of Certiorari in <u>Washington</u> may have the effect of creating a United States Supreme Court precedent to the same effect.

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