IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

PAUL EDWARD MAGILL,

APPELLANT,

-VS-

CASE NO. 64,997

STATE OF FLORIDA,

APPELLEE. /

BRIEF OF APPELLEE

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

-37-

any realistic sense and that due process is not violated as the system of adult justice in Florida is well appointed in the accoutrements of due process. 556 F.2d at 786. The <u>Woodward</u> court stated:

". . . it is true that these same petitioners might have been treated as juveniles in previous encounters with the law, but <u>everyone</u> outgrows juvenile treatment sooner or later; these petitioner, through acts alleged or admitted, have just outgrown it sooner." (emphasis added)

556 F.2d at 785.

In the instant case, Defendant had prior encounters with the juvenile court system and in essence had outgrown it and had not benefited from it. The age of the trigger finger was unimportant to the victim. State would submit that the Defendant is within that class of persons for whom society demands greater protection than provided by the juvenile justice system and we should not second guess such a legislative distinction.

In <u>Gregg v. Georgia</u>, 428 U.S. 153, 96 S.Ct. 2909, 49 L.Ed.2d 859 (1976), the United States Supreme Court approved Georgia's capital sentencing procedure in which the jury's attention is focused on the characteristics of the person who committed the crime in regard to prior convictions for capital offenses and any other special facts about the Defendant that might mitigate against imposing capital punishment. In passing, the court particularily referred to the Defendant's youth as one mitigating fact. 428 U.S. at 197. The court concluded that

-38-

"as a result, while some jury discretion still exists, the discretion to be exercised is controlled by a clear and objective standard so as to produce nondiscriminatory application." 428 U.S. Similarily, the discretion to be exercised by the jury at 198. under the Florida sentencing procedure is also controlled by clear and objective standards and specifically sets forth the age of Defendant as a mitigating circumstance against imposing capital punishment. This mitigating circumstance was found by the jury and the court to be applicable to the Defendant. The age of the Defendant was well considered not only by the lower court but by this Court upon appeal. This Court specifically found that in weighing this mitigating factor along with two others against the aggravating factors, that the trial court used a reason judgment. See Magill (II), supra. The lower court properly denied relief on this basis as such factors have previously been considered by this Court and under the circumstances the Defendant's argument was hypothical and There is no per se rule which pinpoints a particunsupported. ular age as an automatic factor in mitigation. The propriety of a finding with respect to this circumstance depends on the evidence adduced at trial and at the sentencing hearing. Peek v State, 395 So.2d 492 (Fla. 1980), cert.denied 451 U.S. 964, 101 S.Ct. 2036, 68 L.Ed.2d 342 (1981).

The fact that the Defendant is the only juvenile offender against whom a death warrant has been signed is irrelevant as said warrant flows from the fact of the imposition of the death

-39-

penalty initially, and a signing of such a warrant cannot deny the Defendant equal protection where the penalty has been appropriately imposed. This Court has previously reviewed the case in terms of proportionality and alleged disparities in defendants facing the death penalty and are not appropriate on a Rule 3.850 proceeding. <u>See Christopher v. State</u>, 416 So.2d 450, 453 (Fla. 1982). Moreover, the defendant's allegations were inadequantly supported and did not constitute a sufficient preliminary basis to state a cognizable claim.

ISSUE IV

THE IMPOSITION OF THE DEATH PENALTY DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A DENIAL OF THE DEFENDANT'S RIGHTS UNDER THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS DUT TO THE FINDING OF A NON-STATUTORY AGGRAVATING CRICUMSTANCE AS THE PENALTY OF DEATH WAS BASED ON FINDINGS PREVIOUSLY APPROVED BY THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT AND SUCH AN ISSUE IS NOT NOW COGNIZABLE IN A POST CONVICTION PROCEEDING.

The Defendant contends that the sentence of death must be vacated because of the application of a nonstatutory aggravating circumstance that "that three felonies, namely, murder in the first degree involuntary sexual battery and used or threatened to use in the process thereof a deadly weapon, and robbery and in the course thereof carried a firearm, were committed by the Defendant Paul Edward Magill."

The State respectfully submits that the Defendant's argument has been exhaustively addressed in two distinct opinions, to-wit: <u>Magill v. State</u>, 386 So.2d 1188 (Fla. 1980) <u>cert</u>. <u>denied</u>, 450 U.S. 927, 101 S.Ct. 1384, 67 L.Ed.2d 359 (1981), (Magill I) and <u>Magill v. State</u>, 428 So.2d 649 (Fla. 1983) <u>cert</u>.<u>denied</u>, ______U.S.___, (U.S. No. 82-6733, October 3, 1983) and cannot be raised anew in the trial court. <u>Dobbert v State</u>, 409 So.2d 1053 (Fla. 1982).

Nevertheless, even though an improper aggravating circumstance may have been included in the findings of the trial judge's sentence decision and there were identified three mitigating circumstances, <u>Barclay v. Florida</u>, <u>U.S.))), 77 L.Ed.2d</u> 1134 (July 6, 1983), would not compel reversal of the sentence

-41-

judgment in this case. It is apparant on the face of the findings by the trial judge that the result of the weighing process would not have been different had the allegedly impermissible factor not been present. <u>See Jackson v. Wainwright</u>, 421 So.2d 1385 (Fla. 1982). The trial court was equally as liberal in finging questionable <u>mitigating</u> circumstances i.e., that the Defendant lacked a significant prior criminal record and that his father died one year earlier. It is for that reason this Court did not question the factors considered in sentencing. To limit in appropriate aggravating factors is to also limit inappropriate mitigating ones and at the conclusion of such a process, the result is still the death penalty. <u>See Magill</u> (II), 428 So. 2d at 652.

The trial court correctly denied relief on the basis of this claim. Even if the Florida trial court, in imposing the death sentence for murder relied on a factor unavailable to it under statute, the procedure followed did not produce an arbitrary or freakish sentence forbidden by the Eighth Amendment as a properly instructed jury recommended the death sentence. On direct appeal, the Florida Supreme Court stated that a comparison of aggravating and mitigating circumstances and weighing of evidence warranted capital punishment. There was no claim that in conducting its independent reweighing of the circumstances the Florida Surpeme Court considered the improper factor. <u>Wainwright</u> <u>v. Goode</u>, <u>U.S.</u>, 104 S.Ct, 378 (1983).

-42-

ISSUE V

THE EXCLUSION FOR CAUSE OF A JUROR WHO EXPRESSED A BELIEF THAT SHE WOULD AUTOMATICALLY VOTE AGAINST THE IMPOSITION OF CAPITAL PUNISH-MENT WITHOUT REGARD TO EVIDENCE AND COULD NOT MAKE AN IMPARTIAL DECISION AS TO THE DEFENDANT'S GUILT AND EXHIBITED A RESOLVE TO VOTE AGAINST THE IMPOSITION BLINDLY AND IN ALL CIRCUMSTANCES WAS PROPER AND DID NOT VIOLATE THE DEFENDANT'S SIXTH AND FOUR-TEENTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS, AND WAS AN ISSUE PROPERLY DISPOSED OF ON DIRECT APPEAL TO THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT.

A cardinal rule of law is that a lower tribunal is without power to overrule a supreme court's decision. E.g., Hernandez v. Garwood, 390 S.2d 357 (Fla. 1980); Gilliam v. Stewart, 291 S.2d 593 (Fla. 1974); Hoffman v. Jones, 280 So.2d 431 (Fla. 1973). The Defendant was requesting, through his Rule 3.850 motion that the trial court overrule the Florida Supreme Court's decision in the instant case. This issue was presented to this Court and decided unfavorably to the defendant in Magill v. State, 386 So.2d 1188 (Fla. 1980). The state respectfully submits that a trial court is without authority and power to overrule the Florida Supreme Court's decision in the instant case, regardless of the trial court's views as to the appropriateness of the decision, as the decision of the Florida Supreme Court is the law of the case and must be conformed with by the trial court. Only the Supreme Court may overrule its own decision. Gilliam v. Stewart, supra. The Defendant requested

what could not be done, and the lower court correctly denied this claim for relief.

It is also well-settled that a motion under Rule 3.850 cannot be utilized for a second appeal to consider issues that were raised in the initial appeal or could have been raised in that appeal. <u>Meeks v. State</u>, 382 So.2d 673 (Fla. 1980); <u>Demps v. State</u>, 416 So.2d 808 (Fla. 1982); <u>Christopher v. State</u>, 416 So.2d 450 (Fla. 1982); <u>Foster v. State</u>, 400 So.2d 1 (Fla. 1981); <u>Sullivan v.</u> <u>State</u>, 372 So.2d 938 (Fla. 1979); <u>Spenkelink v. State</u>, 350 So.2d 85 (Fla., <u>cert</u>. <u>denied</u>, 434 U.S. 960 (1977). In this cause, the instant claim made under this motion falls under the category.

Citing <u>Witt v. State</u>, 387 So.2d 922 (Fla. 1980), the Defendant contends that it is permissible to reargue this issue on post-conviction proceedings since there has been a change in the law since the time the issue was considered on direct appeal because of the Eleventh Circuit Court of Appeals' decision in <u>Darden v. Wainwright</u>, <u>F.2d</u> (11th Cir. No. 81-5590, February 27, 1984). The state would point out that Witt does not condone such a result. The Florida Supreme Court in <u>Witt</u> explicitly stated:

> [T]o summarize, we today hold that an alleged change of law will not be considered in a capital case under Rule 3.850 unless the change: (a) emanates from this Court or the United States Supreme Court, (b) is constitutional in nature, and (c) constitutes a development of fundamental significance.

387 So.2d at 931.

The Defendant's alleged law change in the case <u>sub judice</u> emanates from an intermediate federal court and is ineligible for consideration in a 3.850 proceeding. 387 So.2d at 930. <u>Darden</u> is an intermediate federal court decision and such lack of finality underscores the Florida Supreme Court's rejection of the orders and decisions of lower courts in the state and federal court systems. The instant case does not meet the requirements of <u>Witt</u>, <u>supra</u>, so that it should be considered again under a Rule 3.850 motion. Moreover, the change in law is not of fundamental significance. Nevertheless, this claim fails upon consideration, in any event.

It is well-settled that a death sentence cannot be carried out if the jury that imposed or recommended it was chosen by excusing veniremen for cause simply because they voiced <u>general</u> <u>objections</u> to the death penalty or expressed conscientious or religious <u>scruples</u> against its infliction. <u>Witherspoon v. Illinois</u>, 391 U.S. 510, 88 S.Ct. 1770, 20 L.Ed.2d 776 (1968). Under <u>Witherspoon</u> prospective jurors cannot be exuesed from jury service on the basis of their opposition to the death penalty unless they make it unmistakably clear (1) that they would automatically vote against the imposition of capital punishment without regard to any evidence that might be developed at the trial of the case before them, or (2) that their attitude toward the death penalty would prevent them from making an impartial decision as to the Defendant's <u>guilt</u>.

Although the Defendant contends that Juror Bonner was

-45-

never advised that it would be proper to consider age as a mitigating circumstance, this is not entirely true. Juror Bonner was asked whether she had heard the questions posed by the state attorney to Juror Keith and she replied affirmatively (R 33-34). Prior to the questioning of Juror Bonner the court had instructed Juror Keith and the other members of the jury that age may be a mitigating factor. The court stated to the jury:

> (A)ge may be a mitigating factor when it comes to that point. Of course, you understand that, but what--he solely asking the question to make sure that in your mind just because a person is under the age of twenty-one would be an absolute bar to impose the death penalty. (R-33)

In essence Juror Bonner was not working under the misconception that age would play no part in punishment. Contrary to the Defendant's assertion, Juror Bonner did make it <u>unmistakably</u> clear that she would <u>automatically</u> vote against capital punishment in this case. She did not start out by saying that the Defendant's age would merely influence her as to the Defendant contended in his motion for relief. The colloquy the Defendant speaks of was as follows:

> BY MR. OLDHAM: The mere fact that this defendant may be under the age of twenty-one, would that create any bar where you could not vote to find him guilty or you could not vote for the maximum penalty of death? BY THE JUROR: Yes sir, it would. BY MR. OLDHAM: It would influence you? BY THE JUROR: Because of his age, yes sir. (R-34-35)

> > -46-

Juror Bonner went on to state that it would be a complete bar to her voting the Defendant guilty of murder in the first degree knowing that he was under the age of twenty-one, even though the evidence showed that he was guilty beyond and to the exclusion of a reasonable doubt (R-36). She stated that she could not vote to find the Defendant guilty or vote for the maximum penalty of death (R-35). She stated that in regard to anyone who was under twenty-one she could not convict them, <u>despite</u> the evidence, if death would result, and could not vote to find him guilty with the eleven other jurors (R-37). Juror Bonner, despite the Defendant's assertions to the contrary, had much more than mere "difficulty" voting for a conviction, as her answers show that it was entirely out of the question.

This issue was properly decided by the Florida Supreme Court in <u>Magill v. State</u>, 386 So.2d 1188, 1189 (Fla. 1980), in which the Court concluded:

> (T)he record discloses that juror Bonner would not vote for a conviction for first degree murder, regardless of the evidence, because of her objection to applying the death penalty to a defendant on the basis of age. It was apparent from the examination that she would be unable to follow the law because of her bias or prejudice toward inflicting the death penalty upon those under the age of twenty-one years. As juror Bonner was properly excused, this contention of this defendant is also without merit.

Even under the precepts of <u>Darden</u>, there is no reason to believe that the judge did not determine that Juror Bonner's responses made it unmistakably clear her unbending opposition to capital punishment. She was <u>individually</u> questioned and her responses left no doubt that her beliefs would be a complete bar to her voting to find the Defendant guilty regardless of the evidence and would bar her also from voting for the maximum penalty of death.

ISSUE VI

A MOTION UNDER FLORIDA RULE OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE 3.850 CANNOT BE UTILIZED FOR A SECOND APPEAL TO CONSIDER ISSUES THAT COULD HAVE BEEN RAISED IN THE INITIAL APPEAL; THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY DENIED THE APPELLANT RELIEF ON HIS CLAIM THAT THE DEFENDANT'S PLEA OF GUILTY OF SECOND DEGREE MURDER, MADE DIRECTLY TO THE JURY BY TRIAL COUNSEL, WAS ACCEPTED BY THE COURT IN THE ABSENCE OF A DETERMINATION OF VOLUNTARINESS.

The defendant contended in his motion to vacate judgment and sentence that from the commencement of the trial to the closing argument, the defendant's appointed attorney admitted that his client was guilty of murder and that the defendant's testimony before the jury that he killed the victim was no more than an in-court confession to the charge of murder and that said arguments of counsel and the defendant's testimony were tantamount to a plea of guilty and that the tacit approval of this procedure by the court without a determination of voluntariness constituted a violation of the defendant's Fifth, Sixth and Fourteenth Amendment rights. The lower court denied this claim for relief summarily without an evidentiary hearing on this issue.

A motion for post-conviction relief under Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure 3.850 is available if the judgment is rendered without jurisdiction, the sentence imposed is not authorized by law or otherwise open to a collateral attack,

-49-

a plea was given involuntarily or there has been such denial or infringement upon constitutional rights as to render the judgment vulnerable to collateral attack. Harper v. State, 168 So.2d 325 (Fla. 1st DCA 1964), cert. denied, 177 So.2d 15, cert. denied, 382 U.S. 867; Prangler v. State, 339 So.2d 1158 (Fla. 2d DCA 1976). The issue now set forth in the instant motion is not cognizable under a Rule 3.850 proceeding. In the case sub judice there has been no denial or infringement of constitutional rights so as to render the judgment vulnerable to collateral attack. Moreover, for purposes of a Rule 3.850 motion, the issue has been waived. The record herein conclusively shows that this issue was never presented in a direct appeal to the Florida Supreme Court. Magill v. State, 386 So.2d 1188 (Fla. 1980), cert. denied, 450 U.S. 927, 101 S.Ct. 1383, 67 L.Ed.2d 359 (1981). (Appellant's initial brief).

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